NATIONAL GRIEVANCE
NG-8/30/22
Date: Au g ust 30, 2022
To:

Denise Biaggi-Ayer
Executive Director
Office of Labor-Management Relations
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
810 Vermont Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20420
Denise.biaggi-ayer@va.gov
Sent via electronic mail only

From: Alec Summerfield, Staff Counsel, National Veterans Affairs Council (#53) (“NVAC”),
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO (“AFGE”)
RE:

National Grievance against the Department of Veterans Affairs for violating law and
contract by failing to bargain shift changes and tour bids for VHA Member Services
Call Center Business Line employees
STATEMENT OF CHARGES

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 43, Section 11 of the Master Agreement Between the
Department of Veterans Affairs and the American Federation of Government Employees (2011)
(“MCBA”), American Federation of Government Employees/National Veterans Affairs Council
(“the Union”) is filing this National Grievance against you and all other associated officials and/or
individuals acting as agents on behalf of the Agency for unilaterally implementing new shift
changes and tour bids for VHA Member Service Call Center Business Line employees. To date,
VA has failed to remedy this violation, and as such, continues to violate policy, contract,
government-wide regulations, and law.
Specifically, the VA violated Articles 2, 3, 47, 49, and the Duration of Agreement clause
of the MCBA, a Memorandum of Understanding executed on February 14, 2019, 5 U.S.C. §
7116(a), and any and all other relevant articles, laws, regulations, and past practices not herein
specified. The Union specifically reserves the right to supplement this grievance based upon the
discovery of new evidence or information of which it is not presently aware, or otherwise, as
necessary.
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
Background
Articles 47 and 49 of the MCBA require that the Department provide reasonable advance
notice to the Union prior to changing conditions of employment of bargaining unit employees as
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to provide the Union with sufficient information for the purpose of exercising its full right to
bargain. Pursuant to Article 47, Section 4(B), notices of proposed changes impacting two or more
VA Locals requires notice to NVAC. The MCBA language is meant to prevent the Department
from unilaterally changing the nature of an employee’s position without first notifying the national
Union and bargaining, if requested. The Federal Service Labor-Management Relations Statute
(Statute) similarly provides that an agency must notify and bargain in good faith with labor unions
prior to changing conditions of employment.
On February 14, 2019, NVAC and the Department of VA executed a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) concerning VHA Member Services Call Center Business Lines Tour of
Duty. Exhibit A. This MOU requires that the Agency changes to tours of duties for any business
line must be bargained in accordance with the Article 47 mid-term bargaining requirements,
Article 13 Sections 4-6, Article 21 Section 2C, 2E, and 3, and Article 23 Section 8F and H.
Paragraph 5 of the MOU clearly states that tour bids are “a proper subject for national term
negotiations.”
Nonetheless, Health Eligibility Center – Member Services Enrollment & Eligibility
Division Associate Director, Rawley Harris, informed the Union on July 12, 2022, that the VA
would not bargain over a series of tour bids and shift changes. Exhibit B. This came four days after
AFGE Local 1539 submitted a demand to bargain over the proposed changes to shifts and tour
bids. Exhibit C. The VA’s failure to provide proper notice to NVAC and subsequent refusal to
bargain over these changes to conditions of employment is a violation of the MOU, multiple
provisions of the MCBA, and federal law.
Violations
By refusing to negotiate in good faith with the Union prior to implementing changes to
shifts and tour bids for VHA Member Services Call Center Business Lines employees, the
Department committed an unfair labor practice under 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a)(5).
Additionally, Article 2 of the MCBA requires that the Department comply with applicable
federal statutes and regulations in the administration of matters covered by the MCBA. Therefore,
in violating 5 U.S.C. § 7116, the Department also violated Article 2.
Further, Article 3 encourages the parties to maintain a cooperative labor-management
relationship that is based on mutual respect, open communication, consideration of each other’s
views, and minimizing collective bargaining disputes. By failing to consult with the Union before
implementing changes to shifts and tour bids, the Department renounced its commitments under
Article 3 of the MCBA and triggered further collective bargaining disputes.
The Department also violated the February 2019 MOU, as well as Articles 47, 49, and the
Duration of Agreement clause of the MCBA, which set forth the parties’ mid-term bargaining
obligations at the national level.
Remedy Requested
The Union asks that to remedy the above situation, the VA agree to the following:
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•
•
•

•
•
•
•

To cease and desist the implementation of the changes to shifts and tour bids until its
bargaining obligations under the MCBA are met.
To fully comply with its contractual obligations under the February 2019 MOU, Articles
2, 3, 47, and 49 of the MCBA, and its statutory obligations under 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a).
To distribute an electronic notice posting signed by Health Eligibility Center – Member
Services Enrollment & Eligibility Division Associate Director, Rawley Harris, via email,
concerning the Department’s unilateral implementation of changes in conditions of
employment in violation of the MCBA and federal law;
To return to status quo ante until bargaining obligations are met;
To make whole any VHA Member Services Call Center Business Line employee adversely
affected by the unilateral implementation of the new position description;
To comply with its obligations under federal law, regulations, and contract;
To agree to any and all other remedies appropriate in this matter.

Time Frame and Contact
This is a National Grievance, and the time frame for resolution of this matter is not waived
until the matter is resolved or settled. If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned
at AFGE Office of the General Counsel. The undersigned representative is designated to represent
the Union in all matters related to the subject of this National Grievance.

Alec Summerfield
Staff Counsel, National VA Council
Office of the General Counsel
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO
80 F Street, NW
Washington, DC 20001
tel: 202.639.6424
efax: 202.379.2928
alec.summerfield@afge.org

cc:

Alma L. Lee, President, AFGE/NVAC
William Wetmore, Chairperson, Grievance and Arbitration Committee, AFGE/NVAC
Thomas Dargon, Jr., Supervisory Attorney, AFGE/NVAC
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EXHIBIT A

EXHIBIT B

From: HARRIS, RAWLEY <RAWLEY.HARRIS@va.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 6:05 AM
To: Pea, Nathan <Nathan.Pea@va.gov>; Jones, Stacey G. (EED)
<Stacey.Jones@va.gov>; PRESLEY, ANTONIO <ANTONIO.PRESLEY@va.gov>;
Echols, Stacey <Stacey.Echols@va.gov>; Arrowood, Nedra (WMC)
<nedra.arrowood@va.gov>
Cc: Roda, Lucia R. <Lucia.Roda@va.gov>; nathan.pea@afgelocal1539.com;
Barbara.Galle@va.gov; gregg.james@afge.org; Brackett, Lonnie
<brackl@afge.org>
Subject: RE: Notice of Demand to Bargain

Good Morning;

An email was sent to both 518 and 1539 regarding the tour bids. No
response was received from either Union. EED is following the
NVAC MOU for tour bids, for which you have a copy and were
supplied all relevant information.

Albeit the email was inadvertently sent to the wrong email address,
you reached out on June 22, 2022 and I supplied the original
notification to you on June 24, 2022 as requested.

1539 was given a reasonable amount of time to request to bargain or
be briefed. There was no response from you until July 8 at 5:21pm
central time when the changes were to go into effect on July 10th.

Therefore, tour bids and shift changes will continue as normally
scheduled.

Respectfully;

Rawley A. Harris, FAC-COR Level II
Associate Director, Enrollment & Eligibility Division
Health Eligibility Center- Member Services
Veterans Health Administration
2957 Clairmont Road, Atlanta GA 30329

Office: (404) 828-5281
Fax: (404) 828-5033

Enrollment and Eligibility Knowledge Management Documents are available at
the below link:
https://vaww.vrm.km.va.gov/system/templates/selfservice/va_kanew/help/agent/l
ocale/en-US/portal/554400000001046/topic/554400000016980/Enrollment-andEligibility

Facilitating access to health care, benefits, and support services for Veterans and their
families.

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail including any attachment(s) is intended for the person or entity to which it
is addressed, and may contain information that is privileged, confidential, or otherwise protected from
disclosure. Dissemination, distribution, or copying of this e-mail or the information herein by anyone other
than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender by
reply e-mail immediately and destroy the original message and all copies.

From: Pea, Nathan <Nathan.Pea@va.gov>
Sent: Friday, July 8, 2022 5:21 PM

To: Jones, Stacey G. (EED) <Stacey.Jones@va.gov>; HARRIS, RAWLEY
<RAWLEY.HARRIS@va.gov>; PRESLEY, ANTONIO <ANTONIO.PRESLEY@va.gov>;
Echols, Stacey <Stacey.Echols@va.gov>; Dent-Lockett, Dionne HEC <Dionne.DentLockett@va.gov>; Arrowood, Nedra (WMC) <nedra.arrowood@va.gov>
Cc: Roda, Lucia R. <Lucia.Roda@va.gov>; nathan.pea@afgelocal1539.com; Galle,
Barbara A. <Barbara.Galle@va.gov>; gregg.james@afge.org; Brackett, Lonnie
<brackl@afge.org>
Subject: Notice of Demand to Bargain

To whom it does concern:
Please see attached DTB notice from Lucia Roda, President of AFGE Local 1539.
AFGE local 1539 Demands to Bargain on the implementation of Tour Bids/Shift
Bids. All further addressing/implementing of said shift bids must halt until
negotiations have completed. Proceeding with implementation is a clear violation
of the master agreement and does constitute a bypass.

Nathan Pea
AFGE Local 1539

EXHIBIT C

July 5, 2022
Mr. Rawley Harris et al.,
Health Eligibility Center
Member Services
Atlanta GA

Re:

Request for Information and Demand to Bargain
Tour Bids

Gentlemen:
In accordance with 5 USC §7114(b)(4), which obligates the Health Eligibility Center, VA
Black Hills, South Dakota (“the Agency”) “to furnish to the exclusive representative, AFGE
Local #1539 (the “Union”), or its authorized representative, upon request…data which is
reasonably available and necessary for full and proper discussion, understanding, and negotiation
of subjects within the scope of collective bargaining.” Please consider this the formal request for
Local 1539 (the “Union”) this date.
The Union, in its representational responsibilities under the Statute, is seeking to bargain
the terms and conditions of employment flowing from the unilateral decision of management to
force its bargaining unit employees of Local 1539 and its Health Eligibility Center to tour bid
without Impact and Implementation bargaining or notifying Local 1539 of the aforementioned
timely. Therefore, any and all amendment to the terms and conditions of the Collective
Bargaining Agreement (CBA) between the Parties covering the bargaining unit as certified by
the Federal Labor Relations must be properly negotiated. Therefore, implementation of any and
all policy must cease and desist until all information and negotiation responsibilities have been
properly fulfilled.

The Union must have the specific information requested in this correspondence to ensure
fair and equitable treatment for AFGE bargaining unit employees. Their rights under the
Agreement, law, rule, or regulation are not diminished because of the negotiation and
implementation of any memorandum of Agreement between the Agency and the Union.
In respect to the current term bargaining negotiations, the Union believes the right to our
bargaining is established as is our right to the requested information. This request is consistent
with the guidance established by FLRA General Counsel guidelines. The Council has shown the
necessity for information gathering and has established the right to such data to fulfill its
representational duties towards bargaining unit employees.
This information is specifically necessary for the Union to formulate proposals in
impacted bargaining. Further, this information is essential for the Union to evaluate the
legitimacy, necessity, and impact of the implementation of the policies proposed by the Agency.
The Union will use this information to furnish proposals that respond to those policies balanced
fairly and equitably with the Union’s obligation to adequately and aggressively represent the
interest of its members.

1. Whereas OPM proposed liberalization of schedules, promoting “flexible work schedules
(FWS) to maintain the productivity, health, and safety of the workforce: the Union seeks
the following information in that spirit.
a. All data including but not limited to:
b.

Correspondence

c.

Directives

d. Schedules

e. Guidance regarding the tour bids
f.

Necessity of tour bids

g. Productivity, numbers, call loads by time of day, week, month, quarter, VSN, and
region, to justify the tour bids unilateral implementation.
h. Impact assessment of tour bids to HEC.
i.

My team looks forward to our discussions and the receipt of the information no later than
30 days from this date. Please cease and desist from proceeding with any further action
until all necessary and appropriate negotiations are completed.

Sincerely,
Lucia R. Roda, MS. Psy.
President@afgelocal1539.com
Lucia.roda@va.gov
AFGE Local #1539
605-891-4630 & 605-745-7030

